
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
January 2, 2014, Regular Meeting  


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the December 5, 2013 Regular Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 







 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
 
A. Discussion/Action re Introduction to FY 2013-14 Operating and Capital 


Improvement Budget Process (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
B.   Discussion/Action re Possible Drought through the Coming Spring and Summer 


(Est. time 20 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS (Est. time 


5 min.) 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 30 min.) 


 
 A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
  Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Recreation and Park District 


 
 


IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


• Guerneville 
• Rio Nido 
• Guernewood Park 
• Villa Grande 
• Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
December 5, 2013 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Richard Holmer 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Victoria Wikle 
   
Board Members Absent: (None) 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     David Warner, Meyers Nave et al. 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Richard Holmer at 6:33 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:33 


p.m.) 
(None.)   
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.) 
 
Director Holmer reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Wikle moved to approve 
the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Robb-Wilder.  Motion carried 5-0, except that Director 
Schaap and Director Wikle abstained as to Item III-A (Minutes) because they were absent at the 
November meeting.  The following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the November 7, 2013 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence, if any. 
  


1. Notice received November 26, 2013 from LAFCO re Notice of Position 
Availability: Alternate Public Member 


 
 


 1







IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:35 p.m.) 
 
(None.) 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:35 p.m.) 
 
A. (6:35 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Election of Officers.  The GM provided an overview 


of this item.  
 


 Director Lipinski nominated Director Holmer to be President in 2014.  Discussion 
ensued.  Director Wikle seconded.  Nomination carried 5-0. 


 
 Director Wikle nominated Director Lipinski to serve as Vice President in 2014.  


Director Schaap seconded.  Nomination carried 5-0.   
 
 Director Wikle nominated Director Robb-Wilder to serve as Financial Coordinator 


in 2014.  Director Schaap seconded.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
B. (6:40 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Review of the 2014-19 Capital Improvement 


Program.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No 
action was taken.   


 
C. (7:13 p.m.) Discussion/Action re District Emergency Preparedness, Response and 


Recovery Plan.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  
No action was taken. 


 
D. (7:30 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re District policy regarding lending.  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Board questions and discussion ensued.  No action 
was taken. 


 
E. 7:44 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Acquisition of Professional Assistance with Cell 


Tower Negotiations.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Comments were made 
by Legal Counsel David Warner.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:06 p.m.) 
 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water Production and Sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Guerneville Rainfall 
5. 2014 CIP 
6. Mill Street Emergency Project 
7. Toilet Rebate / Direct Install Program 
8. In-House Construction Projects 
9. Monte Rio Triangle 
10. Flushing Program 
11. Gantt Chart 
 
Brief discussion ensued.   
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(8:20 p.m.) 


 
(None.)  


 2







 3


 
** The meeting recessed briefly at 8:20 p.m. and reconvened at 8:26 p.m. 


 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:26 p.m.) 
 
At 8:26 p.m. President Holmer announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 8:27 
p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 9:12 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the following 
actions on Closed Session items were announced: 
 


A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 
54956.7 


 Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
 Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
 Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Park and Recreation District  


  Direction was given to the Agency negotiator. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:13 p.m.) 
 
1. Emergency Plan (in GM report) 
2. River Lane 
3. Cell tower negotiator 
 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 9:15 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  
Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:33 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:35 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:35 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:06 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(8:20 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:26 p.m.)

		A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54956.7

		 Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville

		 Agency negotiator: Steve Mack

		 Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Park and Recreation District 





		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:13 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: January 2, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  FY 2014-2015 BUDGET PROCESS 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report on the District FY 2014-2015 
Budget process.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Board typically approves its annual budget at the May meeting and we 
intend to follow this practice this year.  Table 1 below identifies a calendar for 
the budget approval process.  Milestones include the Proposition 218 process 
which has a 45-day notice and a public hearing for increases in rates and 
fees, if necessary, and a public hearing on the Budget itself.  A Proposition 
218 Notice will be necessary for any rate increase for Fiscal Year 2014-15 or 
beyond.     
 
In past years the Board President has appointed two Board Members to the 
ad hoc Budget Committee to assist the General Manager in the development 
of the budget.  Those appointments have occurred either at the December or 
January meetings.   
 
The District’s financial planning has assumed annual 3% increases to the 
base, water usage rates and the Capital Debt Reduction Charge.  Over the 
last 12 months (October 2013 Index), the Consumer Price Index for all Urban 
Consumers, San Francisco area (CPI-U) advanced  1.6 percent..  Energy 
prices declined 9.1 percent, largely the result of a decrease in the price of 
gasoline. The index for all items less food and energy advanced 2.3 percent 
since October 2012.   These increases are less than a year ago mainly 
because of the change in energy costs – we were looking at rising gas prices 
a year ago.  A 1% increase in water rates returns annual revenue of 
approximately $22,000.   
 
In the new fiscal year, the District will have a full year of the substantial cost 
reduction of the General Obligation Bonds due to the refinancing of that debt, 
approximately $45,000. 
 







FY 2014-2015 BUDGET PROCESS   2 
January 2, 2014 
 


 


 
Table 1.  FY 2014-2015 Budget Preparation  
Review Capital Improvement Program  December 5, 2013 


Budget Committee meetings February/March 
2014 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action, 
Including Direction on Water Rates 


March 6, 2014 


Prop 218 Mailing for Water Rate Increase, if 
necessary 


March 17, 2014 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April 2, 2014 


Approve Budget 
• Prop 218 Public Hearing on Rates, if 


necessary 


May 1, 2014 


 





		Meeting Date: January 2, 2014 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: January 2, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  CURRENT DROUGHT SITUATION 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report on the current drought situation.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The lack of rain and its effect on the regional (and statewide) water supply 
has been in the news recently.  Lake Mendocino is at low levels and can’t 
sustain its required releases without additional inflows and Lake Sonoma is at 
adequate water levels but the lake is limited in the maximum flow it can 
release – there’s enough water there to make up for Lake Mendocino but that 
water can’t be released in high enough amounts.  Figure 3 below from the 
General Manager’s Report shows the small amounts of rain we have received 
this rain season compared to prior ones and it affirms the low rain totals.   
 
Last week the Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) petitioned the State 
Water Resources Control Board for a Temporary Urgency Change (TUC) to 
change the Hydrologic Index to be keyed to Lake Mendocino water levels 
through this summer.  Russian River minimum flows are set by a Hydrologic 
Index which is based on water levels in Lake Pillsbury on the Eel River 
according to State Water Resources Control Board Decision 1610.  As we’ve 
discussed in the past, because of changes in the releases from Lake Pillsbury 
to the Lake Mendocino and the change in downstream releases required by 
the Russian River Biological Opinion, the current Hydrologic Index does not 
make sense for the current Russian River flow needs.  This is particularly true 
in a year with below average runoff into Lake Mendocino and the downstream 
of the lake.  If granted (and I believe it will be granted), the TUC changes will 
allow SCWA to immediately go to a critically dry release regimen, saving 
some water in Lake Mendocino for later releases, but still leaving upstream 
storage in bad shape if this rainfall pattern doesn’t change.   
 
What does this mean for Sweetwater Springs Water District?  If this very dry 
situation continues through the Spring, what will our water supply look like?  
We don’t foresee a big impact for us.  The District’s maximum pumping is 
equivalent to about 2 cubic feet per second (cfs) while minimum flows in past 
years have only barely touched 50 cfs.  It may be that even 50 cfs will be a 
struggle to maintain this summer, however, we believe something will be 
released downstream of the SCWA pumps and as long as the summer dams 







Current Drought Situation   2 
January 2, 2014 
 


 


are up, water levels near the El Bonita well field should be similar to past 
summers.  The river water level near the Monte Rio well field is controlled by 
the estuary level and that is controlled by the sand barrier – a dry summer 
may encourage the sand barrier to stay intact for a longer period of time than 
usual.  We don’t expect a noticeable change in water quality with lower flows.   
 
Of course, this dry period could end at any time.  One or two atmospheric 
river storms could fill up the reservoirs and get the tributaries running again 
– it will take much less of a weather change to end the drought in our 
watershed than ending the current statewide drought.  It will rain hard again; 
we just don’t know when.   
 
  


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


Octo
be


r


Nove
mbe


r


Dece
mbe


r


Ja
nu


ary


Fe
bru


ar
y


Marc
h


April
May


Ju
ne Ju


ly


Aug
ust


Sep
tem


be
r


Pr
ec


ip
ita


tio
n


 (i
n)


GV 2009
Guerneville Avg
GV 2011
2013
Dryest (1977)
2014


-





		Meeting Date: January 2, 2014 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: January 2, 2014  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets all known 
State and Federal water quality standards.   


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in November was 23,452 units (53.8 AF, 


Guerneville cycle) and production was 59.0 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and 
production were higher (52.4 AF and 56.6 AF, respectively).  The annual average 
difference between sales and production increased slightly compared to the prior month to 
27.0%.    Figure 1 shows the system wide 12-month moving average for the entire system 
– annual production is staying above 800 AF and annual sales is a little above 600 AF.           


 
3. Leaks:  In November we had 11 total leaks and spent 58.25 man-hours on them.   Those 


are more leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month and fewer of both compared 
to November one year ago (12 leaks, 81.5 man-hours).  Figure 2 shows service and main 
leaks separately with a total breaks line as well.   


 
4. Guerneville Rainfall: Still little rain; the line is now below 1977, the driest year on 


record, with almost no rain in December at the Guerneville rain gage (at the time of writing 
this report with no rain in the forecast).  We really need to pick it up.  This item is 
discussed more in agenda item B.      


 
5. 2014 CIP:   Little progress in the last month - the contractor, Piazza Construction has 


nearly completed the Hidden Valley element – the variable speed pumps have been 
installed and we are still waiting on power for bringing this part of the project online. The 
contractor has finished boring Guernewood Lane and is waiting on a CalTrans permit to 
finish tieing into the Hwy 116 main at both ends.  We are a bit behind schedule but that 
was caused by the interruption by the Mill Street Emergency Project and now waiting on 
PG&E and CalTrans.      


 
6. Mill Street Emergency Project:  The Mill Street Emergency Project is completed.  Some 


paving will need to be done if the street exhibits any more damage from the event.  The 
repair of the parking lot has been completed.             


 
7. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:   No toilet rebates were approved in December.  


The Direct Install Program accounting numbers are as follows: the most current accounting 
is 31 customers have had 49 direct install toilet installations completed, 3 customers have 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 5 
January 2, 2014 
 


not acted after being notified they are approved for installation and 11 previously approved 
customers are on a wait list.   We are starting a new calendar year which means SCWA 
funding will be available for more direct-install projects.  We believe the waiting list is full; 
we’ll have to see who still needs a toilet.                    


 
8. In-House Construction Projects:  There were two in-house project reported for 


December.  Staff replaced a service on River Lane (25 hours) and installed a 12” riser, fiber 
box, and 6” riser sleeve for isolation valve on Monte Vista Terrace (2.5 hours).     


 
9. Monte Rio Triangle:  No movement on this - the agreement with the Torrs and the Monte 


Rio Chamber has been shared with them; at this time it appears to be acceptable and we 
are waiting on a lease agreement.   


 
10. Flushing Program:   The flushing program is continuing; we are near completion.          


   
11. Gantt Chart:   January in the Gantt Chart shows that 2014 CIP construction should be 


complete (in November) – it’s not as discussed above, design of the 2015 CIP – that’s 
happening, and the start of the 2014-2015 Budget process which is Item A on the   on the 
agenda for this meeting.   Also there is a red box for the Decision 1610 Revision EIR – 
severe droughts tend to interrupt the regulatory process, so there may be some delay with 
this item.  Severe droughts are also tests for the modeling and other analyses that back up 
revision requests (severe drought is the test of a water supply), so this may be an 
interesting year for this.   







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 5 
January 2, 2014 
 


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since September 2008 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13 Sep-13


Sa
le


s 
an


d 
Pr


od
uc


tio
n 


(A
F)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
iff


er
en


ce
 (%


)


Sales
Production
%Difference


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline Breaks 
Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-08 Jan-09 May-09 Sep-09 Jan-10 May-10 Sep-10 Jan-11 May-11 Sep-11 Jan-12 May-12 Sep-12 Jan-13 May-13 Sep-13


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


 







General Manager’s Report  Page 4 of 5 
January 2, 2014 
 


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


Octo
be


r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ary


Feb
rua


ry
Marc


h
Apri


l
May


Ju
ne Ju


ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
tem


be
r


Pr
ec


ip
ita


tio
n


 (i
n)


GV 2009
Guerneville Avg
GV 2011
2013
Dryest (1977)
2014


-







 
Dec-12 Jan-13 Feb-13 Mar-13 Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13 Aug-13 Sep-13 Oct-13 Nov-13 Dec-13 Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 FY 15+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2013-14 Budget Preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
•        Approve Budget


2014-15 Budget Preparation
•        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
•        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
•        Update/Review District CIP
•        2014 CIP Design
•        2014 CIP Award of Contract
•        2014 CIP Construction Starts
•        2015 CIP Design
•        2015 CIP Award of Contract
•        2015 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Dec-15


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


•        Lease Ends July-16
Policies and Procedures


•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Table 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: January 2, 2014 



